#### Yale University Library Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library

# **Guide to the Joseph Spence Papers**

### **OSB MSS 4**



by Beinecke Staff

August 1993

P. O. Box 208330 New Haven, CT 06520-8330 (203) 432-2977 beinecke.library@yale.edu/ http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/

## **Table of Contents**

Collection Overview	3
Requesting Instructions	3
Administrative Information	4
Immediate Source of Acquisition	4
Conditions Governing Access	4
Conditions Governing Use	4
Preferred Citation	4
Processing Information	4
Scope and Contents	4
Collection Contents	
Series I: Correspondence, 1735 Jun 21	6
Series II: DocumentsLegal, Financlal and Ecclesiastical, n.d	15
Series III: Spence Travel Letters for 1739-1741.	
Series IV: Notes & Memoranda, n.d.	
Series V: Gardening Notes, ca. 1754	23
Series VI: Miscellaneous and Indexes	26
Series VII: Loose Papers for the Anecdotes	
Series VIII: Derby Anecdotes (Oversize)	
Selected Search Terms	

#### **Collection Overview**

**REPOSITORY:** Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library

P.O. Box 208330

New Haven, CT 06520-8330

(203) 432-2977

beinecke.library@yale.edu http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/

**CALL NUMBER: OSB MSS 4** 

CREATOR: Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768

**TITLE:** Joseph Spence papers

**DATES:** 1649-1859

**BULK DATES:** 1739-1768

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: 7.75 linear feet (10 boxes)

LANGUAGE: English

**SUMMARY:** The papers include correspondence, personal papers, notes and memoranda,

and related papers. Much of the material concerns Spence's Anecdotes, including manuscripts of his notes on conversations with Alexander Pope, memoranda on Stephen Duck and other authors, and notes on Spence's reading. There are also extensive notes on English gardens, shorter writings by Spence, and drafts of works which appeared in his Moralities (1753, under the pseudonym of Sir Harry Beaumont). The correspondence principally concerns personal and business matters, including the settlement of

Spence's estate.

Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes (Oversize) contains a large paper extraillustrated set of the Anecdotes (1820) with autograph documents bound in,including autographs of Eustace Budgell, Colley Cibber, William Congreve, George II, Charles Montagu, Earl of Halifax, David Mallet, Alexander Pope, Sir

William Trumbull, and Joseph Warton.

**ONLINE FINDING AID:** To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: <a href="https://">https://</a>

hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.spence

## **Requesting Instructions**

To request items from this collection for use in the Beinecke Library reading room, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at <a href="https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.spence">https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.spence</a>.

To order reproductions from this collection, please send an email with the call number, box number(s), and folder number(s) to <a href="mailto:beinecke.images@yale.edu">beinecke.images@yale.edu</a>.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

h hox

f. folder

### **Administrative Information**

## **Immediate Source of Acquisition**

The papers were the gift of James Marshall and Marie-Louise Osborn.

## **Conditions Governing Access**

The materials are open for research.

## **Conditions Governing Use**

The Joseph Spence Papers are the physical property of the Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library, Yale University. Literary rights, including copyright, belong to the authors or their legal heirs and assigns. For further information, consult the appropriate curator.

### **Preferred Citation**

Joseph Spence Papers. James Marshall and Marie-Louise Osborn Collection, Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library.

### **Processing Information**

This finding aid, created before the advent of computer-generated files, has been converted into a ASCII data file by means of scanning and Optical Character Recognition software. While attempts have been made to retain the complete information from the original document, a number of format changes have been made to present the structure of this archive in accordance with current practice.

## **Scope and Contents**

The Joseph Spence Papers consist of correspondence, writings, and notes and memoranda of Joseph Spence, as well as a three volume extra-illustrated copy of Spence's *Anecdotes* (1820).

The Spence Papers are divided into eight series. Many of them, particularly those in Series IV, V, and VII, are related to the *Anecdotes*. A complete discussion of the complex editorial history of Spence's work can be found in the introduction to Joseph Spence, *Observations, Anecdotes and Characters of Books and Men*, edited by James M. Osborn (Oxford, 1966).

<u>Series I, Correspondence</u> (Boxes 1-2), is arranged alphabetically by correspondent and contains letters to and by Joseph Spence and several other individuals. A number of original letters are bound in the three volumes of the <u>Derby Anecdotes</u>, and cross-references for these to the volumes can be found in the list for Series I.

<u>Series II, Documents--Legal, Financial and Ecclesiastical</u>, is housed in Box 2, folders 54-66 and consists of documents relating to Spence's life and career, including his certificate of ordination, his appointment to the Professorship of Modern History at Oxford, and the articles of agreements between Spence and publisher James Dodsley for the rights to Spence's work.

<u>Series III, Spence Travel Letters for 1739-1741</u>, is located in Box III and consists of photostats of letters from Spence to his mother, the originals of which are part of B. M. Egerton 2234.

Boxes 4 and 5 hold <u>Series IV, Notes and Memoranda</u>, which has been organized alphabetically by subject or occasionally by author. It includes notes on history and on Spence's reading; unpublished memoranda of conversations with Stephen Duck; and copies of works by other authors. Box 5, folders 135-52 contains writings by Spence himself, including "The Dream of Atticus," "Religious Fooleries," and drafts of various works published in *Moralities* (1753).

<u>Series V, Gardening Notes</u>, contains notes on and plans for various gardens throughout England, including Byfleet, Knole, Oatlands, and Prestonfield. <u>Series VI, Miscellaneous and Indexes</u>, located in Box 7, folders 215-23, contains photocopies of other sources of the <u>Anecdotes</u> and other material relating to the Spence Papers, including a copy of the sale catalogue and an index of names.

<u>Loose Papers for the Anecdotes, Series VII</u>, is housed is Box 7, folders 224-77. Numbered 1-54, these papers are the earliest notes of conversations by Spence; they have been described in detail in James M. Osborn's edition of *Observations, Anecdotes, and Characters*, xlvi-lxxiii. Each numbered anecdote is housed in a separate folder.

<u>Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes (Oversize)</u>, is located in Boxes 8-10 and consists of the three volumes of the *Derby Anecdotes* and a photocopy of *A Catalogue of the Entire Libraries of the Rev. Mr. Joseph Spence*.

## **Collection Contents**

## Series I: Correspondence, 1735 Jun 21

	Allen, Ralph, 1694-1764 ALS to his sister, Widcomby See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1735 Jun 21
b. 1, f. 1	Alston, Philip ALS to Joseph Spence, Poplar  1 p., with address; 20 x 30 cm. On back, Spence's jottings for his letter to Samuel Richardson (1689-1761) of 21 Jan 1748.	1748 Jan 8
b. 1, f. 2	Bedford, duke of, servant to Letter (copy) to servant of Earl of Sunderland, no place 1 p.; 16 x 10 cm. A petition to Sunderland for a fellow ship for a former tutor; copy in Spence's hand.	n.d.
	Buckingham, John Villiers, 1677?-1723 Document signed, to Russell Robartes of Her Majesty's Exchequer, no place  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1712 Apr 16
	Budgell, Eustace, 1686-1737 Letter to an author of the Prompter, [London]  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1735 Oct 23
b. 1, f. 3	Cawsey, Mrs. 3 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Guildford 4 p., with address; 23 x 18 cm. Concerning a demand for payment of a bill for a person Spence had placed as an apprentice; one letter has a draft of Ridley's reply.	1770 Jul-Dec
b. 1, f. 4	Cheap, David Letter (copy) to Richard Lindsay, Chile 1744 Feb 26 4 p.; 32 x 20 cm. Cheap relates the story of the mutiny on HMS Wager in 1741, under his command; copy in Spence's hand.	
	Cibber, Colley, 1671-1757 Receipt signed, Drury Lane Theatre See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1716 May 28
b. 1, f. 5	Cocchi, Antonio, 1665-1758 Letter (translation of) to Joseph Spence, in Spence' hand, no place 4 p.; 19 x 15 cm. Cocchi gives his thoughts on establishing a general ethical principle.	n.d.
b. 1, f. 6	Coltman, Elizabeth (Cartwright) ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Leicester 1 p., with address; 24 x 19 cm. Concerns dispersal of Spence's possessions.	1769 Feb 20

	Congreve, William, 1670-1729 Document signed, to John Warner, no place See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1716 Nov 23
	Cowper, William Cowper, 1st earl, d. 1723 ALS to a Mrs. Robinson, [London?] <u>See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278</u>	1710 Jan 15
b. 1, f. 7	Dick, Sir Alexander, 1703-1785 LS (photostat) to Joseph Spence, Prestonfield 4 p.; 20 x 16 cm. Tells of the recent marriages of his two nieces, the Misses Douglas; mentions own activities; concerns Thomas Blacklock (1721-1791); from the Newcastle Papers at Nottingham.	1767 Dec 25
b. 1, f. 8	Dodsley, James, 1724-1797 2 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), 2 p., with addresses; 23 x 19 cm. Concerns Spence's gift to Mrs. Lawman and payment of debt from Mr. Harrup.	1768,
b. 1, f. 9	Duck, Stephen, 1705-1756 ALS to Joseph Spence, no place 1 p.; 26 x 20 cm. Duck tells of lodgings at Kew which Spence might rent; on back, Spence has written a fable of Minos, which was published in 1746 in Museum.	[ca. 1746]
b. 1, f. 10	Elliott, John 3 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Byfleet 3 p., with addresses; various sizes	1768 Sep-Nov
	George II, King of Gt.Brit., 1683-1760 Document signed, to Commissioners of the Treasury, Court of St. James  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1716 Dec 31
	======================================	
	George II, King of Gt. Brit., 1683-1760 Document signed, Kensington See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1739 Jul 23
	George II, King of Gt. Brit., 1683-1760 Document signed, Kensington	1739 Jul 23 1711 Mar 26
b. 1, f. 11	George II, King of Gt. Brit., 1683-1760 Document signed, Kensington See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278  Halifax, Charles Montagu, 1st earl of, 1661-1715 Document signed, [London]	
b. 1, f. 11 b. 1, f. 12	George II, King of Gt. Brit., 1683-1760 Document signed, Kensington See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278  Halifax, Charles Montagu, 1st earl of, 1661-1715 Document signed, [London] See: Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278  Hampden, Robert Hampden-Trevor, 1st viscount, 1706-1783 ALS to an unnamed recipient [Spence?], Hague 2 p.; 23 x 19 cm. Expressing his sorrow for the death	1711 Mar 26

b. 1, f. 13	Herbert, Miss AL (?) to Joseph Spence, no place 1 p.; 16 x 16 cm.	n. d.
b. 1, f. 14	A gift of, and request for, verse.  Hill, Jonathan ALS to Joseph Spence, Brandon	1758 Sep 21
	2p., with address; 18 x 30 cm. Requests Spence's opinion on his poetry.	
b. 1, f. 15	Irvine, Jenny (Douglas) ALS (photostat) to German, Relhead 18 p.; 25 x 15 cm. Recounts her engagement to Austruther; with Spence's note; also with copy of extracts from letters produced by Austruther; from the Newcastle Papers at Nottingham.	1764 Apr 15
	James II, king of Gt.Brit., 1633-1701 Document signed, Windsor See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1671 May 30
b. 1, f. 16	Jameson, Richard ALS to Joseph Spence, Danzig 3 p., with address; 23 x 19 cm. Asks Spence to write, refers to Thomas Blacklock (1721-1791) and Edward Holdsworth (1684-1746). With: encomium in Latin on Archbishop Wickham	1768 Aug 27
b. 1, f. 17	Lawman, Mary 6 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Cambridge 7 p., with addresses; various sizes Concerns annuity to Mrs. Lawman from Spence estate; includes on one, a draft of Ridley's reply, 1769 Apr 11.	1768-69
b. 1, f. 18	Lee, Harry, 1721-1789 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Coton 2 p., with address; 23 x 19 cm. Concerning Winchester College and Spence's legacy to the to the "Wiccamical Society".	1769 May 22
b. 1, f. 19	Lesslie, John ALS to Joseph Spence, Libbertton Kirk 1 p.; 19 x 15 cm. Relates the differences between Scottish and English statute acres.	1760 Sep 20
	Louis XIV, king of France, 1637-1715 Document signed, to [governor of Laguenau?], Compregne  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1649 May 20
b. 1, f. 20	Lowth, Robert, bp. of London, 1710-1787 23 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), various places ca. 57 p. with addresses; 23 x 19 cm. Concerns actions of Lowth and Ridley as executors of Spence's estate.	1768-69

b. 1, f. 21	Lowth, Robert, bp. of London, 1710-1787 ALS (photostat) to Joseph Spence, Durham  6 p.; 20 x 16 cm. Discusses the poetry of Ossian; relates to Edward Noel Wentworth, 1st Viscount, (1715-1774); from Newcastle Papers at Nottingham.	1762 Mar 2
	Mallet, David, ?1705-1765 Receipt signed, no place See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	n. d.
	Marchmont, Alexander Hume Campbell, 2nd earl of, 1675-1740 Document signed, Cambray  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1724 Dec 12
b. 1, f. 22	Massingberd, Ann 3 letters (copies) to Philippa Massingberd, Ormesby  11 p.; various sizes  Mentions Spence's improvements at  Ormesby and a legend; concerns Joseph  Addison (1672-1719); copies in  Spence's hand.	1757 Feb-Mar
	Onslow, Arthur, 1691-1768 Receipt signed, no place See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1738 May 7
	Oxford, Robert Harley, 1st earl of, 1661-1724 Document signed, to Charles Lord Halifax, Whitehall  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1712 Jul 10
	Peterborough, Charles Mordaunt, 3rd earl of, 1658-1735 Document signed, to Commissary for hand Service, Lisbon  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1705 Jun 13
	Pope, Alexander, 1688-1744 ALS to unnamed recipient, Twickenham  See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1730 Aug 14
b. 1, f. 23	Richardson, Samuel, 1689-1761 ALS to Joseph Spence, London 1 p.; 18 x 15 cm. Inquires about not having heard recently from Spence.	1749 Oct 30
b. 1, f. 24	Ridley, Gloster, 1702-1774 ALS (draft) to Henry Harrup, [?Poplar]  1 p.; 20 x 16 cm.  Concerning Harrup's debt to Spence estate for Great Horwood; notes on back about the matter.	[1769] Jun 2
b. 1, f. 25	Ridley, Gloster, 1702-1774 ALS (draft-photocopy) to Harry Lee (1721-1789), [? Poplar]  1 p.; 16 x 15 cm.  Concerns Spence's legacy to Superannuates' Fund of Winchester College.	[ca. 1769

b. 1, f. 26	Robson, James, 1733-18O6 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), London 1 p., with address; 22 x 18 cm.	1768 Aug 29
	Concerns the possible sale of the library of the late Joseph Spence.	
b. 1, f. 27	Roland, Monsieur ALS to [?Joseph Spence], Reims 2 p., with address; 22 x 17 cm.	1737 Aug 13
	M. Roland sends a sample of fine wine, addressed to "M. Trevor [John Morley Trevor (d. 1745)], à la galère, à Blois".	
b. 1, f. 28	Rolle, Edward, 1703-1791 14 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Berwick and other places	1768-69
	ca. 38 p., with addresses; various sizes Concerns business as executors of Spence's estate.	
b. 1, f. 29	Rolle, Henry, 1709-1750 ALS to Joseph Spence, no place	1729 Jul 12
	2 p., with address; 20 x 22 cm. Asks for news of "learned world"; on back, Spence's notes from Memoirs of Duke of Buckingham [Buckingham, George Villiers, 2d Duke of, (1628-1687).	
b. 1, f. 30	Sharp, Thomas, 1693-1758 ALS to Joseph Spence, Rothbury	1756 Jun 15
	2 p., with address; 23 x 19 cm. Mentions an exchange with Robert Lowth, Bp. of London (1710-1787); stewardship at Durham.	
b. 1, f. 31	Smith, John ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Cambridge	1769 May 7
	1 p., with address; 21 x 17 cm. On behalf of Mrs. Lawman, concerning request to sell her annuity.	
b. 1, f. 32	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 8 ALS (photostats) to Antonio Cocchi (1665-1768), various places	1732-52
	16 p.; various sizes Mentions his translations and Lord Lincoln [Henry Fiennes Clinton, 2nd duke of Newcastle (1720-1794)]; asks	
	Cocchi's help with contacts in literati; mentions <i>Polymetis, Crito</i> , introduces friends to Cocchi; mentions Robert Lowth, bp. of	
	London (1710- 1787), Henry Fiennes Clinton, 2nd duke of Newcastle	
	(1720-1794), and Edward Rolle (1703-1791).	
b. 1, f. 33	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 ALS to Elizabeth (Cartwright) Coltman, Byfleet	1767 Jan 5
	2 p.; 19 x 19 cm. A friendly note.	

b. 1, f. 34	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 ALS (photostat) to Henry Hoare (1705-1785), Byfleet	1766 Mar 24
	7 p.; 23 x 15 cm. An account of the Grotto of Lord Lincoln [Henry Fiennes Clinton, 2nd duke of Newcastle (1720-1794) at Oatlands; from the Newcastle Papers at Nottingham.	
b. 1, f. 35	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 LS (photostat) to Mrs. Johnson, Byfleet	1763 Oct 21
	4 p.; 21 x 16 cm.  Spence relates story of predictions of deaths by John Need in 1707 quoting an account by Dr. Fletcher of Winchester College; see JMO Anecdotes 984.	
b. 1, f. 36	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 AL (copy) to Bennet Langton (1737-1801), no place	[after
	1 p.; 32 x 20 cm.  Spence's reflections on death, on the occassion of the death of Langton's brother George Ferne Langton.	
b. 1, f. 37	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 Letter (copy) to William Massingberd (1719-1802), Byfleet	1765 May 17
	1 p.; 32 x 20 cm. Spence gives news of common acquaintances.	

b. 1, f. 38 Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 43 ALS (photostats) to Newcastle, Henry Fiennes Clinton, 2nd duke of, 1720-1794, various places

1745-68

ca. 175 p., with address; various sizes.

Abundant material from a continuing friendship; photostats from the Newcastle Papers at Nottingham; with 2 AL, 2 AL (drafts), and autograph notes for one letter, all in the same series; relates to Henry St. John, 1st viscount Bolingbroke (1678-1751), Henry Vane, 2nd earl of Darlington (ca. 1705-1758), Samuel Dashwood, Sir Alexander Dick (1703-1764), Robert Dodsley (1703-1764), Henry Hoare (1705-1785), William Hoare (1707?-1792), Edward Holdworth (1684-1746), Robert Lowth, bp. of London (1710-1787), Charles Spencer, 3rd duke of Marlborough (1706-1758), William Massingberd (1719-1802).

Also relates to Horace Walpole, 4th earl of Orford (1717-1797), John Robartes, 4th earl of Radnor (1686-1757), Charles Lennox, 2nd duke of Richmond, Lennox, and Aubigny (1701-1750), Edward Rolle (1703-1791), William Shenstone (1714-1763), Philip Southcote (1699?-1758), Richard Trevor, bp. of Durham (1707-1771), William Warburton, bp. of Gloucester (1698-1779), Edward Noel Wentworth, 1st viscount Wentworth (1715-1774); mentions *Charliad*; in three folders.

b. 2, f. 39 Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 ALS to Christopher Pitt (1699-1768), London 1739 May 4
2 p., with address; 20 x 28 cm.
Spence advises Pitt on committing

b. 2, f. 40 Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 AL (draft) to Samuel Richardson (1689-1761), [London] 1748 Jan 21 5 p.; 33 x 20 cm.

Spence comments on *Clarissa*.

himself to some writing project.

b. 2, f. 41 Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 2 ALS to Samuel Richardson (1689-1761), Byfleet,
Berwick St. John
1758, 1759

6 p.; 19 x 23 cm. Concerning the conduct of his cousin Harry Lawman; with copies of both and of a third letter to Richardson in the same series.

b. 2, f. 42	Spence, Joseph, 1699-176B 3 ALS to Mirabella (Collier) Spence, (1670?-1756), various places [1722?]-36	
	13 p.; various sizes A youthful poem on William III and Anne; story of the African, Job St. Solomon.	
b. 2, f. 43	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 ALS (draft) to [?James] Thomson (1700-1748), no place 1 p.; 20 x 16 cm.  Spence tells of meeting John Dennis (1657-1734), the aged critic; with Spence's notes on the allowance to a maid of honor, "Lady Lucye", in Henry VIII's time.	[1730 May 12?]
b. 2, f. 44	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 ALS (copy) to [?John Morley] Trevor (d. 1745), no place 1 p.; 21 x 17 cm. Letter in an exaggerated style, "Essex-Stile" [?].	1738 Oct 5
b. 2, f. 45	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 AL (draft) to Robert Wheeler, (d. 1763) no place 4 p.; 20 x 16 cm.  Spence gives his rules for designing gardens, and describes his improvements at Byfleet; with three additional copies of the letter.	1751 Sep 19
b. 2, f. 46	Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 Receipt signed, to John Weir, no place 1 p.; 5 x 16 cm. Receipt of payment for a copy of the poems of Thomas Blacklock (1721-1791)	n.d.
b. 2, f. 47	Spence, Mirabella (Collier), ?1670-?1756 ALS to Joseph Spence (1699-1768), no place  1 p.; 20 x 16 cm. A chatty letter, Spence's jottings on back.	1734 May 7
b. 2, f. 48	Spence, Richard, 1701- ALS to Mirabella (Collier) Spence (1670?-1756), London 2 p., with address; 31 x 19 cm. Gives news of the African, Job St. Solomon.	1737 May 28
b. 2, f. 49	Thoms, William, 1803-1885 AL to Peter Cunningham (1816-1869), no place 1 p.; 18 x 11 cm. Thoms inquires after Ms. B, missing at Singer sale [Samuel Weller Singer (1783-1858)]; on back, ALS Cunningham to Thoms of 23 Apr.	1859 Apr 25
	Trumbull, Sir William, 1639-1716 Document signed, Whitehall See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1696 Aug 17

	Warburton, William, bp of Gloucester, 1698-1779 ALS to unnamed recipient, no place	1776 May 8
	See: Series VIII, Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	
	Warton, Joseph, 1722-1800 ALS to G. Jones, [?Winchester] See: Derby Anecdotes, Box 8, folder 278	1792 Nov 11
b. 2, f. 50	Wastell, Edward 3 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Guildford 3 p., with addresses; 21 x 32 cm. Concerning money from sale of the possessions of Joseph Spence (1699-1768).	1768 Oct-Dec 29
b. 2, f. 51	White, Benjamin, 1725-1794 3 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Fleet Street 3 p., with addresses; 33 x 21 cm. Concerning the sale of the library of Joseph Spence (1699-1768); on back of last, Ridley's affidavit on Spence's death.	1768-69
b. 2, f. 52	Whitmore, Edward, 1733-1816 3 ALS to Gloster Ridley (1702-1774), Oxford 8 p.; various sizes Inquiring the value of the living at Great Horwood, and the rent of Mr. Harrup.	1768-69
b. 2, f. 53	[Unnamed correspondent] Letter (draft) to Simon Harcourt, 1st earl Harcourt (1714-1777), Hensol 9 p.; 23 x 19 cm. A romantic account of the scene of a cave at St. Donat's with quotations from Virgil.	1738 Aug 2

## Series II: Documents--Legal, Financlal and Ecclesiastical, n.d.

b. 2, f. 54	Will of Joseph Spence Senior	n.d.
b. 2, f. 55	Ordination into priesthood	1726 Jun 5
b. 2, f. 56	Arcadia, College of, diploma of membership for Joseph Spence	1741
b. 2, f. 57	Oxford, Orders relating to the Professorship of Modern History	1742
	Newcastle, Henry Pelham Clinton, 2d Duke of, 1720-1794	
b. 2, f. 58	DS: pension of L105 given to Spence	1742 Apr 28
b. 2, f. 59	Rectory of Great Horwood, granted to Spence	1742
b. 2, f. 60	Prebendary at Durham, Spence's installation in	1754
b. 2, f. 61	Professorship of Modern History at Oxford, Spence appointment to	1761
b. 2, f. 62	Certification of having taken the Sacrament, at Byfleet	1762
b. 2, f. 63	Prebendary at Durham, Spence's dispensation from	1766
b. 2, f. 64	Articles of agreement between Spence and James Dodsley for rights to Spence's published and unpublished work	1767 Mar 24
b. 2, f. 65	Will of Joseph Spence, 1699-1768	n.d.
b. 2, f. 66	Executor's Accounts, dispersal of Spence estate	n.d.

## Series III: Spence Travel Letters for 1739-1741.

These are photocopies of the original letters, part of B.M. Egerton MS. 2234, leaves 131-291.

b. 3, f. 67	ALSs by Spence to his mother (photostats) Various places in Italy and France	1739-41
b. 3, f. 68	ALS (photostat) by Ld Lincoln to Mrs Spence, Paris	1741 Sep 9

## Series IV: Notes & Memoranda, n.d.

b. 4, f. 69	Africa, descriptions of travel in northern	n.d.
b. 4, f. 70	Art: Notes on painters, beauty, and particular paintings	n.d.
	Blandy, Mary, d. 1752	
b. 4, f. 71	Note about her trial.	n.d.
	Boerhaave, Hermann, 1668-1738	
b. 4, f. 72	Account of his life and writings, from a work by Dr. William Burton.	n.d.
b. 4, f. 73	Books: catalogue of a library	1749
	Brand, Sir Thomas, ca. 1669-1761	
b. 4, f. 74	Poetry	n.d.
	Buxton, Jedidiah, 1707-1772	
b. 4, f. 75	Notes on	n.d.
	Chesterfield, Philip Dormer Stanhope, 4th earl of, 1694-1773:	
b. 4, f. 76	Poetry by	n.d.
b. 4, f. 77	Cicero, reading from	n.d.
	Courayer, Pierre Francois, le, 1681-1776	
b. 4, f. 78	Address in Spencc's hand, conferring a doctorate degree on Courrayer. Oxford	1727 Aug 23
	With an address by Courrayer in gratitude for same award.	
	de Costena, Michael, fl. ca. 1738	
b. 4, f. 79	History of the captain of a captured trading vessel.	n.d.
	Dodsley, James and Robert	
b. 4, f. 80	List of authors of their Select Fables	1761
	Dryden, John, 1631-1700	
b. 4, f. 81	Notes on	[1760 or later]
	Duck, Stephen, 1705-1756	
b. 4, f. 82	Notes on conversations with, in 1730 Not published in Anecdotes.	n.d.
b. 4, f. 83	England: History of, notes and materials on	n.d.
	Includes; Copy of messages between George II and Frederick Louis in 1737 Material on Battle of Dettingen Copy of a letter from a Jesuit close to the crown	
	in 1687 Copy, in Spence's hand, of a letter to George II. Copy of a Latin panegyric to Charles I An account of the history of invasions of England And other materials	
	See also: London, Box 4, folder 98	

b. 4, f. 84	England: Travel memorabilia	n.d.
b. 4, f. 85	England and Scotland, travel notes relating to landscapes and gardening	n.d.
b. 4, f. 86	Europe, History and Travel, notes on See also: Italy (here excluded), Box 4, folder 95	n.d.
	Fleetwood, William, bp. of Ely, 1656-1723	
b. 4, f. 87	Preface to his Four Sermons, 1712.	n.d.
	Friends of Spence, notes on histories of, and documents	
b. 4, f. 88	Misc. material, unsorted	n.d.
	Mallet, David	
b. 4, f. 89	Epilogue to The Brothers, by Edward Young. spoken by Mrs. Clive. Docketed by Spence	n.d.
b. 4, f. 90	Greece, History, notes on	n.d.
	Herbert, N., b. 1688	
b. 4, f. 91	Poetry and a riddle	n.d.
b. 4, f. 92	Herculaneum, notes on antiquities of (heading notes date from volumes of 1757-60)	n.d.
	See also Roman, or Italy, various subtopics.	
	Hill, Jonathan	
b. 4, f. 93	Items relating to Spence's support of Includes: Spence's notes on Hill; a proposal for a printing of poetry by subscription, 1758.	n.d.
b. 4, f. 94	Iliad, a calendar of the passage of time in	n.d.
b. 4, f. 94	Presumably notes for Spence's Essay on Pope's Odyssey, 1726.	
b. 4, f. 95	Italy: History of, notes on	n.d.
b. 4, f. 96	Italy: Travel notes, with some epitaphs	n.d.
	Lawman, Harry	
b. 4, f. 97	Poetry by (Lawman was a cousin of Spence)	n.d.
b. 4, f. 98	London: misc.	n.d.
	Louis IV, 1638-1715	
b. 4, f. 99	Notes on the life of, from Larrey [Isaac de?], a life of Louis IV	[ca. 1783]
	Low, John, (active 1763)	
b. 4, f. 100	The story of	n.d.
	Lyttolton Coorgo Lyttolton 1st haven 1700 1772	

#### Lyttelton, George Lyttelton, 1st baron, 1709-1773: (continued)

b. 4, f. 101	Poetry by	n.d.
b. 4, f. 102	Medicine and Health, reading notes on	n.d.
b. 4, f. 103	Miscellaneous quaint items	n.d.
b. 4, f. 104	Miscellaneous note wrappers, accounts, and lists of expenses	n.d.
b. 4, f. 105	Mogul Empire, notes on history of	n.d.
b. 4, f. 106	Morality, Chinese: notes on	n.d.
b. 4, f. 107	Music, with lyrics	n.d.
	Neville, Henry, 1620-1694	
b. 4, f. 108	Poetry of and notes about (Colonel H. Neville was a distant relative of Spence on his mother's side.)	n.d.
b. 4, f. 109	Ossian's poetry, tr. by MacPherson	n.d.
b. 4, f. 110	Ovid: list of Select Stories from Preliminary notes toward an edition of Ovid's stories.	n.d.
b. 4, f. 111	Oxford, a notice concerning the teaching of religion at	1728
	Philosophy, reading in	
b. 4, f. 112	From Giordano Bruno, 1548-1600), Degli evoici furori, (1585)	n.d.
b. 4, f. 112 b. 4, f. 113	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.	n.d.
b. 4, f. 113	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.	n.d.
	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.	
b. 4, f. 113	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.  Poetry, in French Possible authors are Dr. Arbuthnot, Edward Holdsworth, and Middlesex fragment	n.d.
b. 4, f. 113 b. 4, f. 114	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.  Poetry, in French Possible authors are Dr. Arbuthnot, Edward Holdsworth, and Middlesex fragment in Italian on back of French poem).	n.d.
b. 4, f. 113 b. 4, f. 114 b. 4, f. 115	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.  Poetry, in French Possible authors are Dr. Arbuthnot, Edward Holdsworth, and Middlesex fragment in Italian on back of French poem).  Poetry, French, reading notes on	n.d.
b. 4, f. 113 b. 4, f. 114 b. 4, f. 115 b. 4, f. 116	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.  Poetry, in French Possible authors are Dr. Arbuthnot, Edward Holdsworth, and Middlesex fragment in Italian on back of French poem).  Poetry, French, reading notes on Poetry, in Greek, and translations of	n.d. n.d. n.d.
b. 4, f. 113 b. 4, f. 114 b. 4, f. 115 b. 4, f. 116 b. 4, f. 117	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.  Poetry, in French Possible authors are Dr. Arbuthnot, Edward Holdsworth, and Middlesex fragment in Italian on back of French poem).  Poetry, French, reading notes on Poetry, in Greek, and translations of Poetry, in Italian  Poetry, in Latin	n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d.
b. 4, f. 113 b. 4, f. 114 b. 4, f. 115 b. 4, f. 116 b. 4, f. 117 b. 4, f. 118	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.  Poetry, in French Possible authors are Dr. Arbuthnot, Edward Holdsworth, and Middlesex fragment in Italian on back of French poem).  Poetry, French, reading notes on  Poetry, in Greek, and translations of  Poetry, in Italian  Poetry, in Latin Some may be by Spence, esp. those which appear to be corrected in his hand.	n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d.
b. 4, f. 113 b. 4, f. 114 b. 4, f. 115 b. 4, f. 116 b. 4, f. 117 b. 4, f. 118	Poetry, English, misc. Including poems by "Mr Moore", "Joseph Spence, Sr.", "Miss Jones", "Miss Herbert", "Harison", "Mr Harding", "Mr Fitzgerald", "Christ. Neville", "Dr Byron", "Bp Downes", "Mrs Aldworth", "Mr Hooke", "Halifax" and others.  See also: poetry filed under individual authors.  Poetry, in French Possible authors are Dr. Arbuthnot, Edward Holdsworth, and Middlesex fragment in Italian on back of French poem).  Poetry, French, reading notes on  Poetry, in Greek, and translations of  Poetry, in Italian  Poetry, in Latin Some may be by Spence, esp. those which appear to be corrected in his hand.  Poetry, Latin, translated into English	n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d. n.d.

#### Pope, Alexander, 1688-1744 (continued)

b. 5, f. 122	Lists of his works	n.d.
	Portsmouth, John Wallop, 1st earl of, d. 1762	
b. 5, f. 123	Directions for a painting for him, probably of Lord Portsmouth's son, John Wallop, Viscount Lymington, 1718-1749, and his family [?].	n.d.
b. 5, f. 124	Prayers of famous persons	n.d.
	Rabelais, François, ca. 1494-1553	
b. 5, f. 125	Reading notes on	n.d.
b. 5, f. 126	Religion, notes on Notes on heathen religions, particularly Greek and Roman, and on history of Christian persecution and development of Christian beliefs.	n.d.
	Ridley, Gloster, 1702-1774	
b. 5, f. 127	Poetry by. One copied from Melampus	n.d.
	Rolle, Edward, 1703-1791	
b. 5, f. 128	Poetry by	1754
b. 5, f. 129	Roman general reading in Materials which include diverse topics.	n.d.
b. 5, f. 130	Roman Art and Architecture, reading in	n.d.
b. 5, f. 131	Roman History and Government, reading in	n.d.
b. 5, f. 132	Roman Literature, reading in	n.d.
	St. Solomon, Job	
b. 5, f. 133	Story of	n.d.
	Spence, Joseph	
b. 5, f. 134	Portrait of, with a clipping	n.d.
	Spence, Joseph: Writings	
b. 5, f. 135	The Dream of Atticus	n.d.
b. 5, f. 136	"A dialogue, in the shades, between B and C." Apparently unpublished. Note by Spence to be burned at his death	n.d.
b. 5, f. 137	A letter to Charles Easy, Drafts, with a second letter Printed in the Museum vol I, p. 81 and in Moralities, p. 16. Second letter apparently unpublished	n.d.
b. 5, f. 138	A translation from Erasmus on the Way to Continue Young, draft of Apparently unpublished, but, like the Dialogue between Mrs. Snap and Mrs. Easy, freely translated from a dialogue by Erasmus.	n.d.

#### Spence, Joseph: Writings (continued)

b. <b>5</b> , f. <b>139</b>	Various Essays: On religion, the mind, learning, conversation, customs, and incidental topics; Ovid. Published?	n.d.
b. 5, f. 140	Fables, drafts of:  Apes and Weasels The Cat and her Young one Thc Gentleman and his Steward The Schoolmaster and Painter The Trout The Old Fisherwoman	n.d.
b. 5, f. 141	Horsemanship among Greeks and Romans Probably unpublished	n.d.
b. 5, f. 142	Letters between a mother and her daughter Published in Moralities, p. 54.	n.d.
b. <b>5</b> , f. <b>143</b>	A preliminary list of works to be printed in Moralities, 1753	n.d.
b. 5, f. 144	Drafts of an advertisement for the forthcoming Polymetis Published in the Museum, 26 Apr 1746, Vol I.	n.d.
b. 5, f. 145	History of Pericles, draft Published in Moralities, p. 1.	n.d.
b. <b>5,</b> f. <b>146</b>	Notes toward the translation of the Picture of Human Life by Cebes Notes from James Merrick, 1720-1769, in Merrick's hand. Picture of Human Life was published in Moralities, 1753, p. 146.	n.d.
b. <b>5</b> , f. <b>147</b>	Plan for an Heroic Poem [?]	n.d.
b. 5, f. 148	Poetry in English	n.d.
b. 5, f. 149	Poetry in Latin With various notes, on the poetry sheets.	n.d.
b. 5, f. 149 b. 5, f. 150		n.d.
	With various notes, on the poetry sheets.  A Presentation at Oxford  Presenting Edward Noel, later Viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, as recipient of M.A. degree. Noel attended New College, Oxford, was created M.A. on 19	
b. 5, f. 150	With various notes, on the poetry sheets.  A Presentation at Oxford  Presenting Edward Noel, later Viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, as recipient of M.A. degree. Noel attended New College, Oxford, was created M.A. on 19 Jul 1736.	[1736]
b. 5, f. 150 b. 5, f. 151 b. 5, f. 152	With various notes, on the poetry sheets.  A Presentation at Oxford  Presenting Edward Noel, later Viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, as recipient of M.A. degree. Noel attended New College, Oxford, was created MA. on 19 Jul 1736.  Religious Fooleries, draft  Revolution in an Emmet's Nest, copy	[1736] n.d.
b. 5, f. 150 b. 5, f. 151 b. 5, f. 152	With various notes, on the poetry sheets.  A Presentation at Oxford  Presenting Edward Noel, later Viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, as recipient of M.A. degree. Noel attended New College, Oxford, was created MA. on 19 Jul 1736.  Religious Fooleries, draft  Revolution in an Emmet's Nest, copy Publ. in the Museum, vol. 1, p. 291, and in Moralities, p. 81.	[1736] n.d.
b. 5, f. 150 b. 5, f. 151 b. 5, f. 152	With various notes, on the poetry sheets.  A Presentation at Oxford Presenting Edward Noel, later Viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, as recipient of M.A. degree. Noel attended New College, Oxford, was created M.A. on 19 Jul 1736.  Religious Fooleries, draft Revolution in an Emmet's Nest, copy Publ. in the Museum, vol. 1, p. 291, and in Moralities, p. 81.  wift, Jonathan, 1667-1745 Poetry and prose	[1736] n.d. n.d.
b. 5, f. 150 b. 5, f. 151 b. 5, f. 152 S b. 5, f. 153 b. 5, f. 154	With various notes, on the poetry sheets.  A Presentation at Oxford Presenting Edward Noel, later Viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, as recipient of M.A. degree. Noel attended New College, Oxford, was created MA. on 19 Jul 1736.  Religious Fooleries, draft Revolution in an Emmet's Nest, copy Publ. in the Museum, vol. 1, p. 291, and in Moralities, p. 81.  wift, Jonathan, 1667-1745 Poetry and prose (Photostat story from Newcastle Papers at Nottingham.)  Spence's life of Swift: notes toward	n.d. n.d.
b. 5, f. 150 b. 5, f. 151 b. 5, f. 152 S b. 5, f. 153 b. 5, f. 154	With various notes, on the poetry sheets.  A Presentation at Oxford Presenting Edward Noel, later Viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, as recipient of M.A. degree. Noel attended New College, Oxford, was created MA. on 19 Jul 1736.  Religious Fooleries, draft Revolution in an Emmet's Nest, copy Publ. in the Museum, vol. 1, p. 291, and in Moralities, p. 81.  wift, Jonathan, 1667-1745 Poetry and prose (Photostat story from Newcastle Papers at Nottingham.)  Spence's life of Swift: notes toward (photostats from the Newcastle Papers at Nottingham.)	n.d. n.d.

Winchester College

#### Winchester College (continued)

b. <b>5,</b> f. <b>156</b>	Matter of educating a new Warden of Winchester College	1757
b. <b>5</b> , f. <b>157</b>	Dispute between Dr. Cheyney and Dr. Fletcher	n.d.
	Mentions "Mr Lee" Harry Lee, Warden of Winchester College, 1721-1789.	
	Wycherley, William, 1640-1716	
b. <b>5</b> , f. <b>158</b>	Account of early life of, from Pope	n.d.

## Series V: Gardening Notes, ca. 1754

b. 5, f. 159	Auckland Park: Bishop Butler	ca. 1754
b. 5, f. 160	Bellasis, near Durham: Joseph Spence?, 1699-1768 Reference to planting of trees at Bellasis in Spence's absence, letter of Lowth to Spence	1762 Mar 2
b. 5, f. 161	Berwick St. John in Wiltshire: Edward Rolle, 1703-1791 or his agent [?] Mr. Foot Pencil notes on one sheet about Mr. Hoare's at Stourhead, Wiltshire.	ca. 1756, 1761
b. 5, f. 162	Birchanger, in Essex: Joseph Spence, 1699-1768	ca. 1736-38
b. 5, f. 163	on Bond Street in London: Noel Bruxholme, 1689?-1748	ca. 1743
b. 5, f. 164	Buckingham Gate, a garden by	1747
b. 5, f. 165	Byfleet, in Surrey, plans for the Point, (presumably) at or near	1752
b. 5, f. 166	Byfleet in Surrey: Stephen Duck, 1705-1756	ca. 1752
b. <b>6</b> , f. <b>167</b>	Byfleet in Surrey: Joseph Spence 1699- 1768 Some plans may relate to areas of Byfleet belonging to others. The plans for the Nightingale Arbor are probably for Byfleet, though not definitely	ca. 1748-64
	See also: other folders on Byfleet, and folder for Oatlands and adjacent lands, Box 1, folder 10	
b. 6, f. 168		ca. 1762
b. 6, f. 168 b. 6, f. 169	<u>1, folder 10</u>	ca. 1762 1756
	1, folder 10 Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew	
b. 6, f. 169	1, folder 10  Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew  College Court at Durham	1756
b. 6, f. 169 b. 6, f. 170	1, folder 10  Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew  College Court at Durham  Dalrymple: An Essay on Gardening	1756 n.d.
b. 6, f. 169 b. 6, f. 170 b. 6, f. 171	1, folder 10  Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew  College Court at Durham  Dalrymple: An Essay on Gardening  Danson: Mr Lloyd	1756 n.d. ca. 1763?
b. 6, f. 169 b. 6, f. 170 b. 6, f. 171 b. 6, f. 172	1, folder 10  Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew  College Court at Durham  Dalrymple: An Essay on Gardening  Danson: Mr Lloyd  Dashwood, Samuel, estate of	1756 n.d. ca. 1763? 1761
b. 6, f. 169 b. 6, f. 170 b. 6, f. 171 b. 6, f. 172 b. 6, f. 173	1, folder 10  Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew  College Court at Durham  Dalrymple: An Essay on Gardening  Danson: Mr Lloyd  Dashwood, Samuel, estate of  Dickins, Doctor, estate of	1756 n.d. ca. 1763? 1761
b. 6, f. 169 b. 6, f. 170 b. 6, f. 171 b. 6, f. 172 b. 6, f. 173 b. 6, f. 174	1, folder 10  Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew  College Court at Durham  Dalrymple: An Essay on Gardening  Danson: Mr Lloyd  Dashwood, Samuel, estate of  Dickins, Doctor, estate of  Edwinstowe in Nottinghamshire: Duke of Newcastle or his agent [?] Mr Fisher	1756 n.d. ca. 1763? 1761 1764 ca. 1763
b. 6, f. 169 b. 6, f. 170 b. 6, f. 171 b. 6, f. 172 b. 6, f. 173 b. 6, f. 174 b. 6, f. 175	1, folder 10  Chalford (or Shalford): Mr. Bartlemew  College Court at Durham  Dalrymple: An Essay on Gardening  Danson: Mr Lloyd  Dashwood, Samuel, estate of  Dickins, Doctor, estate of  Edwinstowe in Nottinghamshire: Duke of Newcastle or his agent [?] Mr Fisher  Exchequer House, plans for ground between it and the Thames	1756 n.d. ca. 1763? 1761 1764 ca. 1763

b. <b>6,</b> f. <b>179</b>	Great Horwood, in Buckingham: Joseph Spence, 1699-1768	n.d.
b. 6, f. 180	Hillenden: General Herbert	ca. 1753?
b. 6, f. 181	Inchberd, Captain, estate of	1754
b. 6, f. 182	Jackson, Dr., ideas from his estate	1765
b. 6, f. 183	Johnson, General, estate of	ca. 1753?
b. 6, f. 184	Kimbolton Castle in Huntingdonshire: Duke of Manchester	ca. 1745-46?
b. 6, f. 185	Kirkby Mallory, in Leicester: Edward Noel, viscount Wentworth, 1715-1774, or Mr Noel (agent or relative?)	ca. 1757, 1766
b. 6, f. 186	Knole, in Kent: Charles Sackville, 2nd duke of Dorset, 1711-1769	1766
b. 6, f. 187	Leasowes near Birmingham: William Shenstone, 1714-1763	n.d.
b. 6, f. 188	London town house: Lady Falmouth	1744
b. 6, f. 189	Moore, Mr, in Surrey	ca. 1763
b. 6, f. 190	Oatlands, in Surrey, and adjacent lands: Henry Fiennes Clinton, 2nd duke of Newcastle, 1720-1794	1748, n.d.
	Plans for Garden Grove, labled "Continiatopm", for Mr Moody, 1748, appear to be for Mr. Moody at Oatlands, Newcastle's agent. Sheets referring to "Plantation" seem to be for part of Oatlands, or Byfleet, in Surrey.	
b. 6, f. 191	Ormesby, in Lincolnshire: William Massingberd, 1719-1802	1756-65
b. 6, f. 192	Paul, Thomas, Dean of Cashel	ca. 1765
b. 6, f. 193	Pauler's Perry: Mr. Alston	ca. 1757?
b. 6, f. 194	Persfield: Mr. Morris	n.d.
b. 6, f. 195	Prestonfield, near Edinburgh: Sir Alexander Dick 1703-1785	ca. 1764?
b. 6, f. 196	Raby Castle: Henry Vane, 2nd earl of Darlington, ca. 1705-1758	1755
b. 6, f. 197	Rem'nham; Dr. Morgan	1766
b. 6, f. 198	Richmond: Robert Dodsley, 1703-1764	ca. 1753
b. 6, f. 199	Richmond: Mr. Knipe	1753
b. 6, f. 200	Sedgefield, near Durham: Robert Lowth, bp. of London, 1710-1787	ca. 1756
b. 6, f. 201	Southcote, Philip, 1699?-1758, his manner of planting	n.d.
b. 6, f. 202	Stourton (Stourhead?), in Wiltshire: Henry Hoare, 1705-1785	n.d.
b. 6, f. 203	Stratton Street, in London: Joseph Spence, 1699-1768	1744

b. 6, f. 204	Walker, Mr.: An Essay on Planting Sent to Spence by Sir Alexander Dick	n.d.
b. 6, f. 205	Wardour Castle, in Wiltshire: Lord Arundel	n.d.
b. 6, f. 206	Wheatfield, in Oxfordshire: Edward Rudge	ca. 1765
b. 6, f. 207	White-Harte, at Missenden	1752?
b. 6, f. 208	Whitton: Duke of Argyle	n.d.
b. 12, f. 1	Wood, Mr., designs from	ca. 1749
b. 6, f. 210	Writle: Mr. Eyre	1763
b. 11 (Broadside)	Materials for Designing a Garden: plant lists, general rules to follow	n.d.
b. 6, f. 212	Miscellaneous Items of interest to one whose hobby is gardening	n.d.
b. 6, f. 213	Garden Plans, Unidentified	n.d.
b. 6, f. 214	Reading Notes on Gardening	n.d.

### Series VI: Miscellaneous and Indexes

b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>215</b>	Huntington Ms. of Spence's Anecdotes
b. 7, f. 216	Source "W" B.M. Egerton Ms. 1960
b. 7, f. 217	Notes sent by Spence to Warburton 8 folio leaves
b. 7, f. 218	Miscellaneous. "Mr. P's 3 great Escapes "
b. 7, f. 219	Supplemental anecdotes, compiled by Singer
b. 7, f. 220	Earlier Worksheets used on Spence Papers
b. 7, f. 221	Huntington Ms of Spence's Anecdotes, the Index to
b. 7, f. 222	Sale Catalogue of Spence Papers
b. 7, f. 223	Index of Names Appearing in Spence Papers With dates and known residences.

### Series VII: Loose Papers for the Anecdotes

b. 7, f. 224-277 L1 - L 53

Also A Catalogue of the Entire Libraries of The Rev. Mr. Joseph Spence ... (photocopy), 1769 Aug 8, in

large manila envelope

See: Series VIII

## Series VIII: Derby Anecdotes (Oversize)

b. 8, f. 278	Volume I	
b. 9, f. 279	Volume II	
b. 10, f. 280	Volume III	
b. 10, f. 281	A Catalogue of the Entire Libraries of The Rev. Mr. Joseph Spence (photocopy)	n.d.

#### **Selected Search Terms**

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

### **Subjects**

Authors, English
English literature -- 18th century
English literature -- Anecdotes
Gardens, English -- Design
Gardens -- England -- Design
Literature -- Anecdotes

### **Geographic Names**

Europe -- Description and travel Europe -- Description and travel -- Early works to 1800 Great Britain -- Intellectual life -- 18th century

#### Genres / Formats

Autographs (manuscripts)

#### **Preferred Titles**

Anecdotes, observations, and characters, of books and men

#### **Names**

Budgell, Eustace, 1686-1737 -- Autograph Cibber, Colley, 1671-1757 -- Autograph Cocchi, Antonio, 1695-1758 Congreve, William, 1670-1729 -- Autograph Dodsley, James, 1724-1797 Duck, Stephen, 1705-1756 Halifax, Charles Montagu, Earl of, 1661-1715 --Autograph Lawman, Mary Lee, Harry, 1721-1789 Lowth, Robert, 1710-1787 Mallet, David, 1705?-1765 -- Autograph Pope, Alexander, 1688-1744 Richardson, Samuel, 1689-1761 Ridley, Glocester, 1702-1774 Rolle, Edward, 1703-1791 Spence, Joseph, 1699-1768 Trumbull, William, Sir, 1639-1716 -- Autograph Warton, Joseph, 1722-1800 -- Autograph